
Agenda for a meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel 
to be held on Wednesday, 7 September 2016 at 4.30 pm 
in Committee Room 3 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT
D Smith Thirkill

Engel
Tait

N Pollard

Alternates:

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT
M Pollard Nazir

Shaheen
Shafiq

R Sunderland

Co-opted Members: The Chair of the Children in Care Council
A J Haider – Bradford District Clinical Commissioning Group
K Taylor – West Yorkshire Police
Y Umarji – Education

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if 

Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of 
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be 
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's 
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure 
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken 
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer 
named at the foot of that agenda item.

From: To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Sheila Farnhill
Phone: 01274 432268
E-Mail: sheila.farnhill@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

(Sheila Farnhill – 01274 432268)

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

(Sheila Farnhill – 01274 432268)



3.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Sheila Farnhill - 01274 432268)

B.  BUSINESS ITEMS

4.  COMPLAINTS RAISED BY LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN AND 
YOUNG PEOPLE

A report will be presented by the Deputy Director – Children’s Social 
Care (Document “C”) which summarises the issues raised by looked 
after children who have used the statutory complaints procedures to 
seek redress for their concerns.  The report relates to the period 1 April 
2015 to 31 March 2016.

Members are asked to note the contents of Document “C” and to 
consider whether they wish to seek further information in respect 
of any of the issues raised.

(Irina Arcas – 01274 435269)

1 - 10

5.  WORK PLAN 2016/17

The Panel’s Work Plan for 2016/17 is submitted (Document “D”) for 
Member’s consideration.

(Jim Hopkinson – 01274 432904)

11 - 12

---------------------------------------------

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Report of the Deputy Director  (Children’s Social C are) 
to the Meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel to be 
held on 7 th September 2016. 

C 
 
 
 
 
Subject:   
 
Complaints Raised by Looked After Children and Youn g People  
 
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report summarises the issues raised by Looked After Children who have used the 
statutory complaints procedures to seek redress for their concerns.  The report relates to 
complaints in the period 1st April 2015 – 31st March 2016. 
 

  
Jim Hopkinson 
Deputy Director  
(Children’s Social Care) 

Portfolio:    
 
Children’s Services 
 

Report Contact:  
Irina Arcas  
Complaints Manager 
Phone: (01274) 435269 
E-mail: irina.arcas@bradford.gov.uk 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4/



 
 

 2

 
1. SUMMARY 
 

This report summarises the issues raised by looked after children who have used 
the statutory complaints procedures to seek redress for their concerns. This report 
relates to complaints in the period 1st April 2015 – 31st  March 2016.  The Appendix 
A sets out some of the main issues raised by children and young people and the 
service improvements made to address their complaints. 

 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The Children Act (1989) places a duty on all Local Authorities to establish and 

implement a procedure for dealing with complaints and representations for children 
and young people looked after by them. There is a designated Complaints Manager 
who administers and monitors the procedure for receiving and responding to 
children’s complaints. 

 
2.2 The procedures require that: 

 

• Complaints are resolved informally at the point of service delivery wherever 
possible (stage 1) by a local manager. Complaints at Stage 1 must be 
addressed within 10 working days. 

• Where resolution of the complaint is not possible at that time, the complaint 
will be investigated more formally by a senior officer and Independent 
Person (stage 2). Complaints at Stage 2 must be resolved within 25 working 
days. 

• Where following consideration of the findings of a stage 2 investigation the 
complainant remains dissatisfied, the complaint will be considered by a 
Complaints Review panel (stage 3). Review panels at Stage 3 are to be 
constituted solely of Independent People 

 
Where any part of the complaint has been upheld, the Council is required to ensure 
that this is resolved for the young person and that it considers what wider service 
improvements can be made. 

 
3. REPORT ISSUES/HEADLINES  
 
3.1 There were 848 Looked After Children and Young People on 31st March 2016. The 

majority are cared for in foster care placements or in children’s home with some 
looked after by ‘Family or Friends’ or Placed with their Parents.  Others are leaving 
care to live independently.  

 
3.2 The Complaints Unit liaises closely with the advocacy project (VoiceAbility). There 

were no complaints referred by the advocacy service during 2015/16, although an 
advocate provided support to one of the looked after young people who made a 
complaint. 

 
3.3 There are also arrangements to address issues for children at an early stage and 

many issues are successfully resolved without the need for children to use the 
complaints procedures.  An example of this is the use of the “Moans and Groans” 
books in children’s homes. 

 
 Page 2



 

 3 

 
 
 

Complaints raised by children represent 6% of the total number of complaints 
received by the Children’s Specialist Services, which is a lower proportion than in 
the previous financial year (11%). 

 
3.4      Responding to complaints within the statutory timescales (67%) has reduced    
         when compared to the previous financial year (83%) and as in the previous two 

years, there were no complaints from Looked After Children and Young People 
about child protection or their wellbeing. 

 
3.5 One complaint exhausted the three stages of the Children Social Care complaints 

procedure. 
 
4. OPTIONS 
 
 The overview of a robust complaint procedure is a key role for Corporate parents.  

The Panel need assurance, through this report, that the process is working 
effectively and that issues are being addressed. 

 
5. CONTRIBUTION TO STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 
5.1 A sound, robust and accessible complaints procedure contributes to children young 

people feeling safe to disclose any concerns in the knowledge that they will be 
treated seriously and sensitively. 

 
5.2 Views from children and young people through complaints and compliments and 

lessons learnt from their complaints can contribute to the shaping of the services 
we provide. 

 
6. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS  
 
 None. 
 
7.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1    Members are asked to note the report and consider whether they wish to seek 

further information about issues raised. 
 
8.        APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A : Complaints received from Looked After Children and Young People 
(1st April 2015 – 31st March 2016) 
 
Appendix B : Children Social Care Background Information. 
 

9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 
 None 
  
 
 
 
 Page 3



 

 4 

 
 
 
 
APPENDIX A 
 
Bradford Children’s Specialist Services  

 
COMPLAINTS RECEIVED FROM LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE (1st April 2015 – 31 st March 2016) 

 
1. Activity  
 
1.1 The Complaints Unit recorded 86 new complaints against Children Services 

between 1st April 2015 and 31st March 2016. Of those, 78 were related to Specialist 
Services. 

 
Six of the new complaints were made by young people compared to eight during 
the previous financial year. Two of the complaints were made by adults in relation 
to the time when they were looked after by the Authority and as such they have 
been included in this report. One of the young people was classified as “in need” 
and not looked after by the Authority. One looked after young person made two 
complaints. In essence, four (current and former) Looked After Young People made 
5 complaints  during 2015-16. 

 
1.2 A lower proportion of complaints (6%) within Specialist Services was made directly 

by Looked After Young People than last year (7%). The number of complaints 
received from Looked After Young People represents 1% of the total of young 
people in care (as at 31st March 2016), which is the same proportion as in the 
previous financial year.  

 
Children’s Services – person 
making the complaint 

15-16 
 

14-15 13-14 

Looked After Children  4 5 9 
 
 
2.  Who made the complaints? 
 

Age  2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 
<15 0 0 2 (22%) 
15-18 2 (50%) 4 (80%) 6 (67%) 
19-25 0 1 (20%) 1 (11%)  
>25 2 (50%) 0 0  
Total  4 5 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gender  2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 
Male 1 (25%) 3 (60%) 5 (56%) 
Female 3 (75%) 2 (40%) 4(44%) 
 Total  4 5 9 

Page 4



 

 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.1 As in the two previous financial years, the average complainant was a Looked After 

Child between 15 and 18 years of age (when considering the age of the current 
looked after children not the historical complainants), who was under a care order 
and had no disabilities and for the first time since 2008, the average complainant 
was female.  

 
2.2 When all the complaints received by the Department are considered (including 

those from parents, foster carers etc), there was also a majority of female 
complainants (57%). 

 
2.3 The ethnic mix of complainants has not changed compared to the previous year 

and the youngest person making a complaint during this period was 15 and the 
oldest was 34 (historical complaint).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Disabilities  2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 
Physical 0 0  0  
Learning 1 (25%) 0 0 
No disabilities 2 (50%) 5(100%) 7 (78%) 
Not stated 1 (25%) 0 2 (22%) 

Total 4 5 9 

Status 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 
Care order 2 (50%) 4 (80%) 5 (56%) 
Voluntary Placement 1 (25%) 0 3 (33%) 
Interim Care order 0 0 0 
Other 1 (25%) 1 (20%) 1 (11%) 

Total 4 5 9 

Ethnicity 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 
White British 
  4 (100%) 3(60%) 5 (56%) 

BME  0 2 (40%) 3 (33%) 

Not stated 0 0 1 (11%) 

Total 4 5 9 

Page 5



 

 6 

 
3.  What was the complaint about? 
 

Type of issues  2015-16 2014-15 20123-14 

Communication  0 1 0 
Challenging decisions  1 0 1 
Child Protection  0 0 0 
Information on records  1 1 0 
Service Provision  (general 
quality, failure to provide) 

3 2 2 

Staff (professional practice and 
attitude) 

3 1 6 

Total  8 5 9 
 
3.1 There were 5 complaints made by Looked After Young People during this period 

and these included 8 issues. 
 
3.2 Most of the issues were about service provision and staff (38%), followed by 

challenging decision and incorrect personal information on files (13%). Compared 
to the previous year there is a similar proportion of issues regarding service 
provision (40%) but there is an increase in issues about staff (20%). 

 
3.3 As in the previous year, there was only one complaint about the accuracy of 

personal information held on records by Children Social Care. 
 
3.4 There were no complaints about communication during 2015-16 compared to one 

in 2014-15 and the Department did not receive any complaints made by Looked 
After Children about child wellbeing. This type of complaints generally include 
issues such as harassment, assaults etc. 

 
3.5 Following a different pattern to last year, most complaints were related to the Social 

Work teams, followed by the Looked After team and the Fostering and Adoption unit. 
As in the previous financial year, the Department did not receive any complaints 
from young people in care related to (in house or commissioned) residential units or 
the Youth Offending team. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.6 There were no complaints against Leaving Care during 2015-16. 
 

 
 
 

Services  2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 

Children’s Homes 0 0 2 
Children’s Homes 
(commissioned) 

0 0 1 

Leaving Care 0 1 0 
Social Work Teams 4 1 2 
LAC 2 3 2 
Fostering & Adoption 
Unit 

2 0 2 

YOT 0 0 0 
Total  8 5 9 

Page 6



 

 7 

 
4. How were the complaints made? 
 
4.1 The most popular method to make a complaint was a phone call (2) with the other 

three complaints being received by e-mail, Council’s website and letter.  
 
4.2 Two of the young people used the Council’s website or e-mails to make their 

complaint, whilst these methods were not used during the precious financial year. 
 
4.3 There were no complaints referred by the advocacy service in 2015/16 but an 

advocate got involved and supported one of the young people.  
 
4.4 All the complaints were made directly to the complaints unit. 
 
 
5.       Outcomes of complaints 
 
5.1 Six complaints were closed at Stage 1 during this period. One was resolved and 

therefore, is not included in the table below.  

 
5.2 Most of the complaints (60%) were partially upheld, compared to 50% in the 

previous financial year although contrary to the pattern of the last two previous years 
(0), there were two complaints that were withdrawn. 

 
5.3 There were no complaints fully upheld or not upheld at all. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.  Response times 
 
6.1 As in the previous financial year, the Department acknowledged all the complaints 

except one within the 2 required days.  
 
6.2 During 2015/16 the Department responded to two out of the five complaints received 

from Looked After Children. One complaint was resolved and two were withdrawn. 
One complaint that was received in the previous financial year was also responded 
during 2015/16. 

 
 6.3 Two out of the three complaints were responded to within timescales (67%) which 

shows a decrease in performance compared to last year (83%).  

OUTCOMES Social 
Work 

Homes Leaving Care Adoption/ 
Fostering 

Commissioned LAC  TOTAL  

Upheld 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Partially upheld 0 0 0 1 0 2 3 
Not upheld 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Withdrawn 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 
TOTAL 2 0 0 1 0 2 5 

OUTCOMES 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 

Upheld 0 1 0 
Partially upheld 3 3 6 
Not upheld 0 2 2 
Withdrawn 2 0 0 
TOTAL 5 6 8 

Page 7



 

 8 

 
6.4 The average time to respond to a complaint was 10 days, compared to 8 days 

during the previous financial year. 
 
 
7.  Learning from Complaints 
 
7.1 Managers did not highlight any learning from the complaints made by Looked After 

young people at Stage 1. 
 

7.2 The stage 2 investigation made the following recommendations: 
 a) Bradford Adoption and Fostering Service should offer a timeframe of its support 

to service users in the future in order to ensure clarity regarding the ending of such 
intervention and support, and therefore not offer an open ended service. 
b) Adoption Services should offer clearer directives via supervision in relation to 
what kind of support is available.  
c) The Adoption Service offer consideration to ensuring that policies and 
procedures are updated to reflect these recommendations. 
d) That an apology is offered to the complainant in relation to the possible mixed 
messages received in relation to how long the support was going to last. 
  
 

8.       Escalation 
 
8.1 In contrast with the pattern of the last four financial years, one of the complaints 

made by Looked After Children escalated to Stage 2 and 3 of the Social Care 
Complaints Procedure. The complaint was responded to within statutory guidelines at 
both, stage 2 (within allowed extension) and stage 3 and the outcome of the stage 2 
was partially upheld. The stage 3 was completed in April 2016, and therefore, its 
outcome will be included in the annual report for 2016-17. 

8.2 The cost associated to the stage 2 investigation (one independent person) was £648. 
The cost related to the stage 3 review panel will be included in the next annual 
report. 

 
 
9.  Compliments 

9.1 Children Services received 68 compliments of which 75% were from service 
users. Of those, 12 were made by young people which is a lower number than in 
the previous financial year (20). This reduction of compliments reflects the 
overall reduction of compliments received by Specialist Services during 2015-16 
(from 72 to 68) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TYPE   Social 
Work 

Leaving 
Care 

CWDH TOTAL 

Impact on 
service user 

0 5 0 5 

Quality of service 0 7 0 7 
Staff  0 0 0 0 
Beyond job’s 
remit 

0 0 0 0 

Total  0 12 0 12 Page 8



 

 9 

 
 
9.2 Leaving Care received all the compliments (12) made by young people in care, 

usually through the exit interviews.  
 
9.3 Following the same pattern as in the previous two years, young people were 

happy with the quality of the service they received (7) and the impact this had on 
their lives (5).  

 
 

TYPE   2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 
Impact on 
service user 

5 7 8 

Quality of service 7 11 21 
Staff  0 1 0 
Beyond job’s 
remit 

0 1 1 

Total  12 20 30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 9



 

 10

 
 
APPENDIX B 
 
 
CHILDREN SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS 
 
Background Information as at 31 st March 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
Open Children Cases:  3,977 . This does not include any under 18’s receiving services  

from Adults teams or some peripherical services like family centre parenting 
groups, exclusion projects, CAMHS, etc 

 
Number of LAC:  848 mainstream (looked after full t ime)  . 
     
 
 
 
 
Representations under Children Social Care complain ts procedure between 1 st April 
2015 and 31 st March 2016: 
 
 
 From LAC  Total  
Stage 1 complaints  5 86 
Stage 2 formal investigations  1 4 
Stage 3 revi ew panels  1 4 
Ombudsman  0 3 
Pre-complaints  1 84 
Compliments  12 68 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Document D 

Corporate Parenting Panel – 2016/17 
 

Conservative  Labour  Lib Dem  
Cllr Dale Smith Cllr Carol Thirkill (Chair) Cllr Nicola Pollard 

 Cllr Sinead Engel (Dep Chair)  
 Cllr  Angela Tait  
   

Alternates  Alternates  Alternates  
Cllr Mike Pollard Cllr  Sarfraz Nazir Cllr Rachel Sunderland 

 Cllr  Fozia Shaheen  
 Cllr Mohammed Shafiq  

 
Non-voting Co -opted Members  

Inspector Kevin Taylor West Yorkshire Police, Partnerships 
Yasmin Umarji Senior Primary Partnership Manager, Education 
Ali Jan Haider Director of Strategy, Bradford District Clinical Commissiong Gp 
The Chair of the Children in Care Council  

 
Corporate Parenting Panel  

Date/Venue 
 

Report/Author  Deadline for Reports to 
Secretariat 

13th July 2016 
 
4.30 pm – 6.00 pm 
 
Venue : Committee Room 1 

� Appointment of Co-opted Members 
� Work Plan 
� Adoption Service, including Regionalisation of 

adoption – Mary Brudenell 

 
1st  July 2016 

7th September 2016 
 
4.30 pm – 6.00 pm 
 
Venue : Committee Room 3 

� Work Plan 
� Complaints – Irina Arcas 
� (Reg 44) and Member visits to Residential 

Homes – Suzanne Lythgow  
 

 
24th August 2016 

9th November 2016 
 
4.30 pm – 6.00 pm 
 
Venue : Committee Room 3 

� Work Plan 
� Residential Review Update – David Byrom 
� Update on Regionalisation of the Adoption 

Service (to include information in respect of 
resource allocation and the position in respect of 
Special Guardianship Orders)- Mary Brudenell  

� Innovation Fund Bid 

 
27th October 2016 

11th January 2017 
 
4.30 pm – 6.00 pm 
 
Venue : Committee Room 1 

� Work Plan 
� Educational Outcomes for LAC and update on 

the Virtual School – Peter Gibbons  

 
23rd December 2016 

8th March 2017 
 
4.30 pm – 6.00 pm 
 
Venue : Committee Room 1 

� Work Plan 
� Review of the Exit Interview Process – Rachel 

Curtis/Carly Turpin 

 
23rd February 2017 

26th April 2017 
 
4.30 pm – 6.00 pm 
 
Venue : Committee Room 3 

� Work Plan 
� Emotional & Mental Wellbeing of LAC – Farah 

Husain 

 
11th April 2017 

 
Items for Inclusion on the Panel’s Work Plan for 201 6/17 in due course 
 

(1) Review of Exit Interview Process 
(2) Update on the Work of the Virtual School 
(3) Adoption & Fostering of Sibling Groups (once the  Policy document is drafted and 6 months after imple mentation) 
(4) Emotional & Mental Wellbeing of LAC : Progress re ports, including information on the allocation of t he available 

finance 
(5) Journey to Excellence : Progress report 
(6) Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) Service : up date report in November 2016 
(7) Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) Service : An nual Report in June 2017 
(8) A report on Regulation 44 visits  

 Page 11

Agenda Item 5/



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 COMPLAINTS RAISED BY LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
	5 WORK PLAN 2016/17

